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CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will open the meeting on the Committee on Senate Finance. We will begin 
with Senate Bill (S.B.) No. 517. 
 
SENATE BILL 517 (1st Reprint): Establishes the Nevada State Infrastructure 

Bank. (BDR 35-602) 
 
SENATOR MARK A. MANENDO (Senate District No. 21): 
Through the Southern Nevada Economic Forum, Senator Scott Hammond and I 
asked the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern Nevada (RTC) what 
innovative tools we could engage in to help fund Nevada's transportation needs. 
The goal was to ensure we were educated on tools and resources available 
outside of the fuel indexing that was passed. Based on RTC's research they 
informed Senator Hammond, myself, others on the Southern Nevada 
Transportation and Infrastructure Committee and stakeholders that attended 
numerous meetings, there was a state infrastructure bank (SIB) that we should 
consider. They are very popular. Thirty-four states already have set up 
infrastructure banks.  
 
Infrastructure banks are a fund source that offers loan and credit assistance to 
public bodies in order to construct highway, transit, rail and other transportation 
projects. The public body is then responsible for paying the loan back to the 
bank at a reasonable interest rate. The SIBs are beneficial because they promote 
infrastructure investment and are able to leverage the initial public capital by 
using interest collected to fund more projects. In addition, the funds are 
recyclable, allowing the bank to finance more projects as loans are repaid just as 
private banks do. Senate Bill 517 is needed to take advantage of any new 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/5767/Overview/
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federal funding policies, and to help finance roadway, and transit infrastructure 
necessary for our communities. Generally, matching state funds are used to 
start an SIB. There has already been discussion of significant federal funding 
investment in infrastructure. If this were to occur, there could be money 
dedicated to the SIBs around the Country.  
 
In addition, Nevada's SIB would be able to accept funding from any lawful 
source including private and local capital. Senate Bill 517 is a commonsense 
approach to take advantage of future funding opportunities to improve our 
transportation infrastructure. With me today is Senator Hammond who 
co-chaired this bill on the Senate side.  
 
SENATOR SCOTT T. HAMMOND (Senate District No. 18): 
We have someone here today to walk us through the bill. This bills stems from a 
trip we took to Denver, Colorado. We looked at what Colorado was doing with 
their light and heavy rail systems, and their entire transportation needs 
infrastructure. We were astounded to find out how much money they received 
from the federal government. The reason they received the federal money was 
because they were prepared. They had a structure ready. They had all the 
pieces in place to receive the federal monies. When they applied for the grant, 
they were the only state that looked attractive enough to invest in, and the 
federal government put a lot of money into Colorado's projects.  
 
Nevada is behind other states in establishing an SIB. Nevada would be one of 
over 30 states that have an infrastructure bank. It is a financial entity where 
monies can be placed and then used and distributed. The funds can be put back 
into the SIB from those who have used it in the past. In the bill itself, there is a 
component that makes up a board. The board members are not paid unless we 
see funds being placed in the SIB. This is not something we are going to set-up 
and then fund right away. This is a preparatory stage. If the federal government 
starts to invest and puts money into states, we will be prepared to receive 
those monies. This is a collaborative effort. The Southern Nevada Forum met 
and made this item one of our priorities. We spent several meetings discussing 
how we were going to implement the SIB and the bill language. We included 
representatives from every municipality in southern Nevada, Assembly 
members, Senate members and leadership from Republicans and Democrats. It 
is definitely a bipartisan effort to change things in the State with regard to 
transportation and utility infrastructure. 
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DAVID CLYDE (Government Affairs and Legal Supervisor, Regional Transportation 

Commission of Southern Nevada): 
I am here on behalf of the Regional Transportation Commission of Southern 
Nevada. Senate Bill 517 would create a Nevada SIB. The purpose of the bank is 
to provide loans and other financial assistance to various government agencies, 
public and private partnerships for the development, construction, improvement, 
operation and ownership of transportation facilities and utility infrastructure. An 
SIB is a government bank, in this case, on the state level, which assists in 
supporting infrastructure projects within the state.  
 
The SIBs have been around since 1995. The SIBs took off in 2005 when there 
was specific federal funding for these banks. There are 34 other states already 
using SIBs. We have seen the following benefits: flexibility, project financing at 
different rates and flexible payment plans. They can also help cover both 
short-term and long-term costs of a construction project. One of the reasons the 
federal government talks about SIBs is the idea of leveraging federal funds to 
increase access to state, local funds and private funds. One other benefit is that 
the SIB can be perpetual. The repayments of the principle and interest monies 
go back into the SIB to fund future projects.  
 
Florida used an SIB to fund a comprehensive transportation plan for the City of 
Jacksonville. In Virginia, they used loans from their SIB for the U.S. Route 17 
expansion. In South Carolina, they used an SIB to help fund a new 16 mile 
southern connector highway. 
 
The SIB is not just for roadways; it can be used to fund transportation facilities 
and transit as well. In section 44 of S.B. 517, it specifically states that the SIB 
would not be created until specific money has been identified for it. This means 
that an executive director or other employees could not be hired until specific 
money is available. The money identified would not come from the State but 
from the proceeds and grants the bank receives. It will go towards funding the 
employees of the bank including the executive director position. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
Where does the initial start-up money come from? 
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MR. CLYDE: 
There has been discussion in the federal government from the 
Trump Administration and the Democrats on the use of federal funds. Our intent 
would be to use federal funds right now. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
Would this come from a federal grant or some other mechanism? After you have 
the start-up funding, you lend and then recover payments and interest. How 
much money are we discussing? What would be the minimum amount and what 
would be the optimal amount? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
The federal government has not given us any details on the amounts given to 
start-up the SIBs. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
What amount do you think it would take to start up the SIB? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
I do not know. I can get back to you after I review other state SIBs. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
I think we need to know how much we will need. 
 
SENATOR HARRIS: 
I like the concept. My concern is with regard to the broad powers given to the 
Board. In section 20, subsection 2, page 9 of S. B. 517 there is no review or 
approval by any other department, division or agency of the State that is 
required with regard to fiscal power granted to the SIB. I do not see a method 
on how interest would be calculated on the loans. If this fund is to be perpetual 
based on interest, you will probably be offering below market rate loans. When 
and how are we going to maintain financial integrity if we are going to have 
these low interest rate loans? How do we keep it perpetual? Why is there no 
oversight for decisions concerning this Board? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
Your questions are 1) why is there no oversight for Board decisions and 2) how 
does it remain perpetual if the interest rates are very low. Is this correct? 
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SENATOR HARRIS: 
Will you be using a normal standard to determine interest rate on a particular 
loan because it is not addressed at all in the legislation? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
One of the reasons it is not addressed is to have flexibility. Board members who 
have expertise in different areas of infrastructure and banking could then 
identify what the appropriate interest rate should be. The bill was designed to 
have this flexibility for Board members. The idea is that the Board reports to the 
Governor and Legislature with an annual report to explain expenditures. Public 
meetings would be held.  
 
SENATOR HARRIS: 
The annual reporting would take place after the funds have been expended. 
There is an inability to call those funds back once expended. What other powers 
are granted to the Board? Can they alter the loan or enter into a loan 
modification, or forgive the debt? In my opinion, there is a lot of power given to 
this Board with very little oversight.  
 
MR. CLYDE: 
One of the reasons for the flexibility is so the Board can approve projects and 
handle them as quickly as possible. If there is a project that needs short-term 
funding, in order to close a funding gap, the SIB can do this quickly to get the 
project completed.  
 
SENATOR HARRIS: 
Thirty-four states have these SIBs. Are we drawing on the powers that have 
been granted to other states in terms of this Legislation? Will the proposed SIB 
be given greater latitude than the other states? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
The SIB structure was developed modeling other states. Most other states, from 
our research, shows that they also provide an annual report to the governor and 
the legislature.  
 
SENATOR HARRIS: 
Has there been any mismanagement of the funds in these other states? 
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MR. CLYDE: 
We are not aware of any misappropriation. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
I think we will look at other states. We will ask Fiscal staff and our legal staff to 
review this legislation. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
In section 27 of S.B. 517, it seems like any obligation put out by the bank is not 
a liability to the State or any of its political subdivisions. Someone has to be 
liable to pay the debt. Please explain this section. 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
One of the primary purposes of section 27 is to be sure that the faith and credit 
of the State and local entities are not impacted. The liability is on the SIB. The 
SIB can be sued and would be responsible for any obligations. We wanted to 
create some separation.  
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
Please walk through the process of obtaining a SIB loan. A local government 
has a transportation project that they have identified as a priority. The local 
government wants to finance it through the SIB because they can get a better 
interest rate. How does the local government pay for this project? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
In the statute, it specifically mentions that the entities can use any funds that 
are already permitted to be used for transportation or infrastructure projects. 
They can use their own budgeted funds to fund the loan they will obtain from 
the SIB. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
The local governments do not get taxes and bonds to finance infrastructure 
projects? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
I do not know that answer. 
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SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
Does the SIB have the power to pursue local governments if they fail to make 
their loan payments? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
Yes, there is a provision in section 28 of S.B. 517 that discusses the ability of 
the SIB to operate through the State Controller or any other specific State 
agency to withhold money if the local government fails to pay their agreement. 
Section 28, subsection 2, also discusses which funds the State cannot 
withhold. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
What is an example of a utility project that the SIB would fund? 
 
MR. CLYDE: 
Section 18.5 of S.B. 517 specifically discusses utility infrastructure projects. 
The main purpose is to allow connections to utilities for master-planned 
business parks and industrial parks. NV Energy provided an amendment to 
S.B. 517 that clarifies the definition of a "utility" and "utility infrastructure." 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will move on to additional speakers on S.B. 517. 
 
JACK MCGINLEY (Executive Regulation Analysis, Policy and Strategy, Nevada 

Energy): 
We worked with the sponsor, Judy Stokey of NV Energy, to clarify two 
definitions as an amendment to S.B. 517 (Exhibit C). We inserted the definition 
of a utility in section 18.2. The definition of a utility is contained in Nevada 
Revised Statute (NRS) 408.407, subsection1, paragraph b. We also inserted the 
definition of a utility infrastructure in section 18.5. It states that the 
connections to a utility's distribution or transmission system must be in 
conformance with the tariffs of the utility. The tariffs are referred to as Rule 9 
tariffs. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
Is this a common use for these SIBs in other states? NV Energy already has a 
mechanism to recoup costs, which are the ratepayers. Rate base is how 
NV Energy's projects are financed. Why would we include this State process 
into the structure? 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/Exhibits/Senate/FIN/SFIN881C.pdf
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MR. MCGINLEY: 
The difference is that when we build a facility, an interconnection facility, there 
are two parts of the funding. One is sponsored by the utility, which is recovered 
through rates. The other piece is done by the developer. NV Energy does not 
have anything to do with this piece. The developer finances its own costs. If 
they are directly assigned costs, the developer pays directly. Sometimes the 
developer is paid back depending on the later use of those facilities. I see this 
SIB funding mechanism to fund developer's costs. These costs would not be 
passed through into general rates. 
 
PAUL MORADKHAN (Vice President, Government Affairs, Las Vegas Metro 

Chamber of Commerce, City of Las Vegas): 
The Las Vegas Metro Chamber of Commerce would like to offer its support of 
S.B. 517. I am also speaking on behalf of the City of Las Vegas.  
 
BRUCE H. BRESLOW (Director, Nevada Department of Business and Industry): 
I will respond to Senator Kieckhefer's question regarding local governments 
issuing bonds for infrastructure and the process of getting SIB loans paid back 
by local governments. Cities and counties typically use general obligation bonds. 
It is not passed through. They pledge their full faith and credit to a bond. I 
would assume that the SIB mechanism would offer entities a competitive 
interest rate lower than they would get in the lending market. The entity would 
have to pledge their full faith and credit with these loans. It is not a grant 
program. It is a bank. If a developer wanted a loan, I would assume they would 
have to show they have coverage ratios, steady income streams and the ability 
to get a loan from the SIB. Local government's full faith and credit would be 
pledged for the SIB loan. This mechanism makes sure that the SIB receives its 
money back with interest. The revolving fund would grow and then be available 
for other projects. 
  
MICHAEL MAJEWSKI (Principal, Spatial Economic Concepts, National Association  
 of Industrial and Office Properties): 
I am an economic development consultant. I am also representing the 
National Association of Industrial and Office Properties. We are in favor of 
S.B. 517 specifically, section 18.5, the utility infrastructure section. The SIBs 
came about as a top priority of the Economic Forum Subcommittee of the 
Southern Nevada Forum. In 2014, Las Vegas Global Economic Alliance did a 
study. Within this study, it was found that 91 percent of recipients of the study 
cited land price and infrastructure costs as a significant factor in not locating to 
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Nevada. Two subsequent studies were done in 2015 by the Las Vegas Global 
Economic Alliance in cooperation with the Governor's Office of Economic 
Development. In 2016, the National Association of Industrial and Office 
Properties did a further study of the comparative advantages of southern 
Nevada to surrounding states in attracting jobs. All of them cited the lack of 
infrastructure. This is why in section 18.5 of S.B. 517 it identifies distribution 
facilities for major master-planned industrial and business parks. It is a major 
component to attract economic diversification in Nevada.  
 
This is almost an extension of what you might find in the Faraday Future and 
the Tesla, Incorporated bill. Instead of calling special sessions, there would be 
something in place, and if we had to move quickly to get a business, it could be 
accommodated. It ensures the economic growth from those new jobs in 
Nevada. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Is there anyone in opposition? Seeing no one, is there anyone in neutral? Seeing 
no one, Senator Manendo or Senator Hammond do you have any final remarks? 
 
SENATOR HAMMOND: 
We will be answering the questions fully that were asked by the Committee. 
This is an important step. We see the federal government receding from the 
picture within the states infrastructure. It is up to us to fill the void and move 
forward. We need to find a way to build the infrastructure in Nevada.  
 
SENATOR MANENDO: 
We need to ensure Nevada is ready to go by having these tools ready. We want 
to be ready when the federal government starts looking at the states. Currently, 
Nevada is behind the times. We need to catch up.  
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will close the hearing on S.B. 517. We will open the work session on 
S.B. 410. 
 
SENATE BILL 410: Revises provisions relating to reckless driving. (BDR 43-72) 
 
 
 
 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/5475/Overview/
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MARK KRMPOTIC (Senate Fiscal Analyst): 
Senate Bill 410 was heard by the Senate Committee on Finance April 13, 2017. 
The bill increases the existing misdemeanor criminal penalty to a Class B felony 
if a person commits reckless driving under certain circumstances or organizes an 
unauthorized speed contest on a public highway. The Committee was interested 
in the fiscal impact of the bill. The Department of Motor Vehicles indicated that 
the bill would not have a fiscal impact and could meet the implementation date 
of October 1, 2017. The Department of Public Safety's (DPS), 
General Services Division, submitted a fiscal note and testified on its fiscal 
impact to the Committee. The DPS indicated that additional Nevada offense 
codes would need to be established, and certain other codes would need to be 
repealed. The DPS identified 53 hours of staff time to undertake this effort. The 
DPS's General Services Division, did not directly identify a fiscal impact that 
would require additional resources to implement the bill, but would collectively 
look at the legislation affecting its operations. They would potentially return to 
the Interim Finance Committee (IFC) to add those resources. The General 
Services Division of DPS is a self-funded entity and is not dependent upon 
appropriations to fund its operations. It has reserves for additional resources 
subject to IFC approval. The Department of Corrections (DOC) in its fiscal note 
response indicated that it did not find any information in its system through its 
review of certain offenders convicted for reckless driving. The DOC could not 
identify any baseline data to use as a proxy in determining the fiscal impact. 
The DOC concluded that it could not determine the fiscal impact of this bill.  
 
Testimony in support of S.B. 410 included Mr. Justin Jones from the Southern 
Nevada Bicycle Coalition, Mr. John Jones of the Nevada District Attorney's 
Association and Mr. Brian Callahan representing the Las Vegas Metropolitan 
Police Department. 
 
 SENATOR FORD MOVED TO DO PASS S.B. 410. 
 
 SENATOR DENIS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
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CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Before we leave the work session, we have three bills that were rereferred to us 
from the Senate Committee on Education, S.B. 178, the weighted-funding bill, 
S.B. 390; the Zoom School bill; and S.B. 430, the Achievement School District 
bill. All of these bills need further work on the policy. I would entertain a motion 
to rerefer these three bills back to the Senate Committee on Education for 
additional work. 
 
SENATE BILL 178: Revises provisions relating to the funding formula for K-12 

public education. (BDR-34-792) 
 
SENATE BILL 390: Extending and revising the Zoom schools program for the 

2017-2109 biennium. (BDR S-788) 
 
SENATE BILL 430: Eliminates the Achievement School District. (BDR-793) 
 
 SENATOR   HARRIS   MOVED   TO   REREFER   S.B. 178, S.B. 390  AND  
 S.B. 430 BACK TO THE SENATE COMMITTEE ON  EDUCATION. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Next, we will go to budget closings, Closing List No. 3 (Exhibit D). 
 
ELECTED OFFICIALS 
 
CONTROLLER 
 
Controller - Controller's Office — Budget Page ELECTED-259 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-1130 
 
JEFF FERGUSON (Senior Program Analyst): 
We have two budgets for the Controller's Office. The first one is budget 
account (B/A) 101-1130 beginning on page 9 of Exhibit D. This is the 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/5029/Overview/
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/5448/Overview/
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/5510/Overview/
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/Exhibits/Senate/FIN/SFIN881D.pdf
http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/Exhibits/Senate/FIN/SFIN881D.pdf
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Controller's Office main budget account. There are three major closing issues 
described on pages 10 through 15.  
 
Major closing issue 1 pertains to debt collection responsibilities. The Governor 
recommends transferring the Debt Collection Unit from the Controller's Office 
B/A 101-1130 to the Governor's Finance Office (GFO) B/A 101-1140. This 
transfer includes revenues and expenditures associated with four accounting 
positions and associated contract costs, which total $1.1 million in 
FY 2017-2018 and $896,992 in FY 2018-2019. In order to effectuate this 
transfer, the Governor recommends transferring the revenues and expenditures 
associated with debt collection from the Controller's Office B/A 101-1130, 
decision unit E-900, to the GFO Debt Recovery B/A 101-1140, 
decision unit E-900.  
 
E-900 Transfer Debt Collection — Budget Page ELECTED-263 
 
GOVERNOR'S OFFICE 
 
Governor's Finance Office - Debt Recovery Account — Budget Page 
  ELECTED-62 (Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-1140 
 
E-900 Transfer Debt Collection — Budget Page ELECTED-63 
 
At the request of the State Controller, the GFO, Division of Internal Audits 
(DIA), conducted an audit of the State's debt collection process, focusing on 
the efficiency and effectiveness of the State's debt collection efforts and 
determination of the proper agency to handle the State's debt collections. The 
audit report was issued in June 2016. In addition to procedural 
recommendations to automate and clarify certain debt collection processes, the 
audit report recommended a bill draft request (BDR) to transfer the State's debt 
collection responsibilities from the Controller's Office to the GFO. The report 
cites that the ineffectiveness of the Controller's Office debt collection efforts 
are primarily due to: 1) agencies not complying with statute NRS 353C.1965 
requiring them to turn over debt to the Controller's Office; 2) the Controller's 
Office having limited ability to enforce compliance with debt collection 
requirements due to the lack of penalties associated with noncompliance; 
and 3) the Controller's Office lacking authority to audit state agencies to 
determine if all debts have been assigned pursuant to state law. 
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In the audit report, the DIA states that this transfer would improve the 
effectiveness of Nevada's debt collection efforts. The GFO falls under the 
authority of the Governor, who appoints most agency directors and approves 
their budget requests, thereby providing greater ability to enforce collection 
statutes. The GFO also indicated that the audit recognized the cumbersome 
process for submitting debt to the Controller's Office for collection, as well as 
the ineffectiveness of the Controller's Office in collecting debts assigned to it 
and not writing off uncollectable debts timely. The GFO further indicated having 
all of the functions of debt collection under the purview of the Governor would 
allow for control of the process from beginning to end. The transfer of the 
Debt Collection Unit to the GFO would provide the Governor with the authority 
and responsibility to manage the entire debt collection process. 
 
In accordance with the audit recommendation, Assembly Bill (A.B.) 51 was 
introduced during the 2017 Legislative Session. This bill, which provides for the 
transfer of debt collection responsibilities from the Controller's Office to the 
GFO, would require passage by the 2017 Legislature in order to implement the 
Governor's recommendation. However, Fiscal staff notes that pursuant to Joint 
Standing Rule No. 14.3.1, no further action is allowed on A.B. 51 and the bill is 
considered dead. Accordingly, if the Committee, and the 2017 Legislature, 
wishes to approve the Governor's recommendation to transfer debt collection 
responsibility from the Controller's Office to the GFO, the provision of A.B. 51 
would need to be included in another measure that is passed by the 
2017 Legislature. 
 
Assembly Bill 51: Revises provisions regarding the collection of debts owed to 

state agencies. (BDR 31-231) 
 
General Fund appropriations are currently utilized to support the four debt 
collection unit positions and associated debt collection operating costs in the 
Controller's Office budget. The Governor's recommendation would continue to 
fund the Debt Collection Unit personnel and operating costs with General Fund 
monies. However, the Executive Budget recommends placing the positions in 
the Debt Recovery Account budget, which would be transferred to the GFO. In 
response to Fiscal staff's questions regarding positions, operating costs and 
General Fund appropriations should be introduced into the Debt Recovery 
Account. The GFO indicated the intent was to show all costs associated with 
the Debt Collection Unit in a single budget account. The GFO stated that 
General Fund monies are necessary in the 2017-2019 biennium to support the 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/App/NELIS/REL/79th2017/Bill/4718/Overview/
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Debt Collection Unit staff, as well as to provide payment to the contractor 
pursuant to the current amended debt collection contract. 
 
Fiscal staff expressed concern about how the issue of unspent General Fund 
appropriations in the Debt Recovery Account would be handled because money 
in this account does not revert and balances forward at the end of each fiscal 
year. The GFO responded that any General Fund appropriations provided to the 
Debt Recovery Account through decision unit E-900 would be for specific costs, 
and any amount that was not used for those specific purposes would be 
reverted to the General Fund. Fiscal staff pointed out that under current law as 
set forth in NRS 353C.226, unspent General Fund appropriations in the 
Debt Recovery Account could not be reverted to the General Fund. Accordingly, 
the GFO recommended an amendment to A.B. 51 that would require the 
reversion of any unspent General Fund appropriations in the Debt Collection 
Account back to the General Fund. 
 
If the Committee wishes to approve the Governor's recommendation to transfer 
debt collection responsibilities, including the Debt Recovery Account, from the 
Controller's Office to the GFO, a provision should be included in the enabling 
legislation that would require all unspent General Fund appropriations to revert 
to the General Fund at the end of each fiscal year. The GFO also indicated to 
Fiscal staff that it is hopeful at some point in the future the Debt Collection Unit 
would become self-supporting and General Fund monies would no longer be 
needed to support any costs of the Debt Collection Unit, including the existing 
staff. 
 
The Committee should note that with no further action allowed on A.B. 51, if 
the Committee wishes to approve the Governor's recommendation to transfer 
debt collection to the GFO, the basic provisions of A.B. 51 would need to be 
included in another measure that is approved by the 2017 Legislature. In 
addition, Fiscal staff recommends the measure include language that would 
require any unspent General Fund appropriations in the Debt Recovery Account 
be reverted to the General Fund at the end of each fiscal year. 
 
Since the supporting legislation to make this recommendation is allowed no 
further action, and the ability to implement this recommendation is dependent 
on enabling language from A.B. 51 being incorporated into another piece of 
legislation, does the Committee wish to: 
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1) Not approve the recommendation to transfer debt collection positions and the 
Debt Recovery Account activities from the Office of the Controller to the 
Governor's Office of Finance, or 
 
2) Approve, contingent upon passage and approval of enabling legislation, the 
Governor's recommendation to transfer revenues and expenditures associated 
with the Debt Collection Unit, including four accounting positions and contract 
costs totaling $1.1 million in FY 2017-2018 ($684,202 General Fund 
appropriation) and $896,992 in FY 2018-2019 ($500,373 General Fund 
appropriation), from the Controller's Office budget to the Debt Recovery 
Account budget, and then organize the Debt Recovery Account budget under 
the authority of the Governor's Finance Office. 
 
For either option, Fiscal staff requests authority to make the appropriate 
technical adjustments in this budget to reflect the Committee's decision. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
I support the transfer of this function over to the GFO. This is the third house it 
will have had since I have served in the Legislature. It was in the Department of 
Taxation before it was in the Controller's Office. The biggest issue that exists is 
the timely transmittal over to the collecting agency. The individual with the 
authority in the GFO will be Mr. Jim Wells or his successor in terms of authority 
over the people who should be required to transfer that debt over. It seems like 
a logical home for it. I am not sure why A.B. 51 did not meet its deadlines. I 
would support moving forward with this transfer and requesting legislation to do 
so. I do not know if we can request a BDR out of the Committee since it is a 
budget implementation measure.  
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The Committee could request a BDR. It would qualify as a budget 
implementation measure making it exempt. If the Committee wishes to approve 
the transfer, Fiscal staff would also suggest requesting the BDR to affect the 
transfer to the GFO of the Debt Recovery Unit.  
 
SENATOR FORD: 
I do not know why A.B. 51 did not pass. We have not had a substantive 
conversation on this issue in this Committee. I am not comfortable with 
automatically allocating money. I would be comfortable with Option 2, which 
affords the money contingent upon the ultimate presentation and passage of a 
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bill to make that transfer. We need to have the conversation and be able to 
determine if this transfer is appropriate or not.  
 
 SENATOR FORD MOVED TO APPROVE OPTION 2 WITH 
 AUTHORIZATION FOR FISCAL STAFF TO MAKE TECHNICAL 
 ADJUSTMENTS IN THIS BUDGET TO REFLECT THE COMMITTEE'S 
 DECISION AND WITH THE UNDERSTANDING IT IS CONTINGENT UPON 
 THE PASSAGE OF ENABLING LEGISLATION. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
The BDR as it comes forward would also carry the language that called for the 
reversion back to the General Fund? 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The issue of the reversions of General Fund monies could be addressed in the 
legislation that is requested by the Committee or the back language of the 
Appropriations Act. 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
If we are going to make the policy decision to transfer the function, we need to 
have some legislation to allow that to happen. If A. B. 51 is dead, we need to 
find a legislative vehicle to make this policy decision. I will support the motion 
on Option 2, but we need to find a way to make it happen. 
 
SENATOR FORD: 
I am not certain we need the policy decision right now. Option 2 is a contingent 
motion. If we later determine by way of a BDR and want to make this transfer, 
the contingency becomes a reality. 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
The decision the Committee is supporting is the budgetary transfer of the Debt 
Recovery Unit to the GFO from the Controller's Office. There would be required 
legislation to affect that transfer in addition to the budgetary decision of the 
Committee. This budgetary decision is also going to be addressed in the 
Assembly Ways and Means Committee later this morning. If both Committees 
approve the transfer of the Debt Recovery Unit as proposed by the Governor, 
Fiscal staff would suggest some request to initiate legislation to effectuate the 
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transfer. Otherwise, the transfer of the Debt Recovery Unit based on the budget 
itself could not take place. 
 
SENATOR FORD: 
My question is do we have to do this right now? Can we wait until after the 
Assembly Ways and Means Committee makes its recommendation? Secondly, 
can we have further discussion with this Committee on whether we want to 
transfer the Debt Recovery Unit? 
 
MR. KRMPOTIC: 
You are correct; this is not a decision that needs to be made right now. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
If we are going to accept Option 2, we have to recognize the only way it goes 
forward is with legislation. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
The recommendation on the floor is Option 2.  
 

 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

MR. FERGUSON: 
Major closing issue 2, page 12 of Exhibit D, pertains to training. The Governor 
recommends eliminating the training facility and training officer position from 
the Controller's Office B/A 101-1130 in decision unit E-127. Funding reductions 
in General Fund appropriations of $140,579 in FY 2017-2018 and $147,169 in 
FY 2018-2019 would result from these recommendations. Staff notes that the 
training officer position has existed in the Controller's Office since July 2006, 
with the current incumbent occupying the position since that date.  
 
E-127 Sustainable and Growing Economy — Budget Page ELECTED-262 
 
The Controller's Office indicates the demand for classes it provides has 
remained relatively stable. Classes provided by the Controller's Office include 
training on the State's accounting system, Advantage, to ensure transactions 
are entered into the system accurately, training on the Data Warehouse of 
Nevada, (DAWN), and training on Discoverer, which is a query, reporting and 

http://www.leg.state.nv.us/Session/79th2017/Exhibits/Senate/FIN/SFIN881D.pdf


Senate Committee on Finance 
April 24, 2017 
Page 19 
 
Web publishing toolset that provides direct and Web access to data stored in 
the State's accounting system. In addition to training provided by the 
Controller's Office, the training facility hosts training for a number of other State 
agencies to conduct their own agency-specific training. 
 
The Agency provided a table on page 12 of Exhibit D showing the number of 
hours of training provided at the training facility per quarter for the 
2015-2017 biennium, the number of employees enrolled and the number of 
employees completing training. Training provided by the Controller's Office 
through its training officer as well as training hosted for other State agencies 
that conduct their own agency-specific training is contained in this table. 
 
The Controller's Office indicates the training facility and training officer are 
recommended to be eliminated because the functions they currently perform are 
proposed to be transferred to the GFO B/A 101-1340 in conjunction with a 
proposed agreement with Western Nevada College (WNC).  
 
Governor's Finance Office – Budget Division — Budget Page ELECTED-52 

(Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-1340 
 
E-228 Efficient and Responsive State Government — Budget Page ELECTED-54 
 
According to the information provided by the GFO, training courses anticipated 
to be offered by WNC would cover training currently offered by the Controller's 
Office, the Division of Human Resource Management, the GFO and the State 
Purchasing Division. 
 
Testimony during the budget hearing by the GFO indicated that training at WNC 
would utilize the combination of technical expertise of current State employees 
and teaching expertise of WNC instructors. Fiscal staff questioned what specific 
position from the Controller's Office would have the technical expertise to assist 
in training related to the State's financial system if the current training officer 
position was eliminated. 
 
In response, the Controller's Office indicated it would no longer have an 
individual with the requisite training expertise if the training officer position was 
eliminated, and there would be a significant interruption in hands-on training 
administered by the Controller's Office until it could redirect the responsibilities 
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of another team member away from current duties to acquire the expertise and 
thereafter perform the training.  
 
The GFO responded that other State employees, both inside and outside the 
Controller's Office, understand the State's accounting system and can assist in 
training new employees to access the State's accounting system. However, no 
specific details were provided about which positions inside and outside the 
Controller's Office would have the requisite knowledge and available time to 
perform this training. 
 
The training officer acts as the instructor for the various classes offered by the 
Controller's Office. The training officer is responsible for the management, 
coordination and scheduling of a curriculum development for the Controller's 
Office training program. The training officer is also responsible for the operation 
and implementation of online training courses offered by the Controller's Office. 
The position conducts monthly hands-on computer-lab training sessions in 
Advantage, DAWN and Discoverer.  
 
The two-day training for Advantage classes averages 13 students per class, 
with one class offered per month. The DAWN averages nine students per class 
and the Discoverer averages five students per class.  
 
The Controller's Office pointed out that, as proposed by the GFO, the volume of 
students for the WNC training is 24 students per fiscal year. Accordingly, this 
would not meet the needs of those requiring Advantage training. This could 
result in an inability of agencies to enter transactions through Advantage, 
delayed or delinquent payments to vendors and the ultimate collapse of State 
financial controls. 
 
The GFO disagrees that replacing the current training with the proposed training 
at WNC would result in a collapse of the State financial controls, noting that the 
vacancy in the training officer position would have similar impact and other 
State employees, both inside and outside of the Controller's Office, can assist 
with this responsibility. 
 
Fiscal staff requested from the Controller's Office the specific concerns and 
issues it would have if the training officer position were eliminated. 
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The Controller's Office indicated the primary issue is how new users in the 
State will be trained in the Advantage system. The Controller's Office indicated 
it would not have anyone to continue to provide this training within the 
Controller's Office if the training officer position is eliminated. The 
Controller's Office also stated that it does not have anyone who could 
immediately add those duties to their present job requirements. 
 
Presently, completion of the two-day hands-on computer lab training is required 
for new users to access Advantage. This is part of the State's internal control 
over financial reporting and is designed to protect the State from materially 
misstated financial reports due to errant entries. 
 
As administrators of the accounting system of record for the State, the 
Controller's Office indicates it is unwilling to weaken these controls, because it 
would risk the integrity of the data housed within the system and would likely 
result in an adverse opinion by external auditors regarding the strength of the 
State's internal controls. However, the GFO indicated that it does not believe 
the change in training would damage the integrity of the data in the State's 
accounting system, nor would it likely result in an adverse opinion from external 
auditors. 
 
With respect to the training facility, the Controller's Office indicated the only 
issue would be where to conduct the hands-on computer lab training. As 
alternatives, the Controller's Office indicates it is exploring the possibility of 
setting up a computer lab in the Controller's Office conference room on 
Musser Street in Carson City. The lab would only be able to accommodate 
ten training stations, which would likely require expanding to two training 
sessions per month in Advantage to continue to meet the State's needs. 
Further, the Controller's Office indicated a training facility in the Blasdel Building 
and one in the Nevada Department of Transportation could provide potential 
training labs. 
 
The GFO indicated it is the current intent of the Agency to repurpose the 
training facility in the Blasdel Building if the proposal to eliminate testing for 
classified employees is approved. However, the GFO did not indicate whether 
repurposing the Blasdel Building would include the ability to host training by the 
Controller's Office on the State's financial systems. The response to Fiscal 
staff's questions regarding whether the Controller's Office had received any 
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feedback from agencies that currently utilize the training facility regarding its 
proposed closure, the Agency responded that it had not received any feedback. 
 
Based on testimony and information received by the Controller's Office and the 
GFO, there appears to be uncertainty at this point in time about how training on 
the Controller's Office financial systems would be conducted. In addition, it 
does not appear there is consensus between the Controller's Office and the 
GFO concerning the appropriate individual(s) who could provide training on the 
State's financial systems and the impacts to the Controller's Office and the 
State's accounting system, if the training officer position was eliminated. Fiscal 
staff notes that elimination of only the training officer position provides 
General Fund savings of $87,587 in FY 2017-2018 and $93,930 in 
FY 2018-2019. 
 
Does the Committee wish to approve the Governor's recommendation to 
eliminate the training officer position from the Controller's Office budget? If the 
Committee wishes to retain the training officer position, additional General Fund 
appropriations of $87,587 in FY 2017-2018 and $93,930 in FY 2018-2019 
would be required. 
 
CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
Is there any discussion on whether the training officer position should be 
eliminated or not? 
 
SENATOR KIECKHEFER: 
We heard during the hearing on this matter that the GFO was confident it would 
be able to ensure adequate and sufficient training for new employees. 
Mr. Wells, representing the Governor, feels confident they can get the job done. 
It is their responsibility as the employer. 
 
 SENATOR  KIECKHEFER   MOVED   TO  APPROVE  THE  GOVERNOR'S  
 RECOMMENDATION TO ELIMINATE THE TRAINING OFFICER POSITION 
 FROM THE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE BUDGET. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
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MR. FERGUSON: 
Given the fact that the Committee has recommended to eliminate the training 
officer position from the Controller's Office budget, Fiscal staff also 
recommends that the Committee vote to eliminate the training facility. This will 
provide General Fund savings of $52,992 in FY 2017-2018 and $53,239 in 
FY 2018-2019. 
 
Does the Committee wish to approve the Governor's recommendation to 
eliminate the training facility? 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
It makes no sense to have the training facility if the training officer position is 
eliminated. 
 
 SENATOR GOICOECHEA MOVED TO ELIMINATE THE TRAINING 
 FACILITY FROM THE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE BUDGET. 
 
 SENATOR KIECKHEFER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

MR. FERGUSON: 
The final major issue in the Controller's Office budget discussed on page 15 of 
Exhibit D is the elimination of the assistant controller position, decision unit 
E-126. 
 
E-126 Sustainable and Growing Economy — Budget Page ELECTED-261 
 
The Governor recommends eliminating the assistant controller position, which 
would result in funding reductions totaling $113,988 in FY 2017-2018, 
approximately $20,000 that would be General Fund appropriations and 
$117,620 in FY 2018-2019, with General Fund monies making up 
approximately $23,500. The assistant controller position was eliminated by the 
2011 Legislature as a budget reduction measure; however, the 2013 Legislature 
concurred with the Governor's recommendation to restore the assistant 
controller position with the primary responsibility to improve debt collection 
efforts. Accordingly, the position was approved with approximately 85 percent 
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of the total cost of the position funded with transfers from the Debt Recovery 
Account, and 15 percent with General Fund appropriations. However, testimony 
during the budget hearing indicated that the assistant controller is not currently 
involved in debt collection issues, but instead focuses on financial reporting. 
 
The Controller's Office has clarified since then, that this decision was made to 
shift the responsibilities of the assistant controller from debt collection activities 
to financial reporting in 2016. According to the Controller's Office, the decision 
stems from the fact that the current deputy controller served as the assistant 
controller during the first two months of the current administration, and because 
that individual was working with debt collection efforts it made sense to have 
that position continue to do so. However, a couple of months into the 
administration the assistant controller who was working on debt collection was 
promoted to deputy controller. The thought at the time was that the debt 
collection system in two or three months would be up and running. This is not 
the case. The debt collection system just recently came on line. The decision 
was made to continue to have the deputy controller work on debt collection and 
the assistant controller work on financial reporting. 
  
During the budget hearing, the Controller's Office indicated that without the 
assistant controller position the Controller's Office would be in jeopardy of not 
receiving the Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting, 
from the Governor's Finance Officers Association (GFOA), an award the office 
had received for 17 years. Fiscal staff notes that the Office did receive the 
GFOA in FY 2011-2012 and FY 2012-2013 when they did not have an 
assistant controller position. The Controller's Office also indicated that the 
Government Accounting Standards Board pronouncements have increased the 
workload for producing the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) 
resulting in additional work hours to complete. However, the Office did not 
provide specific details of the new pronouncements or provide workload 
statistics that would support the increased work hours to complete the CAFR. 
 
The Agency's testimony during the budget hearing indicated that a CAFR 
accountant I position would be the only other position that could address the 
Controller's Office needs with regard to financial reporting besides the assistant 
controller. However, Fiscal staff notes that ten positions are currently assigned 
to the CAFR Unit within the Controller's Office, with seven of those positions 
being CAFR accountant I positions and one being a CAFR accountant II position, 
which provides oversight for the entire unit. 
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Does the Committee wish to approve the Governor's recommendation to 
eliminate the assistant controller position, thereby reducing transfers from the 
GFO Debt Recovery Account, B/A 101-1140, by $94,030 in FY 2017-2018 and 
$94,047 in FY 2018-2019, and reducing General Fund appropriations by 
$19,958 in FY 2017-2018 and $23,573 in FY 2018-2019? 
 
Fiscal staff notes that if the Committee wishes to retain the assistant controller 
position, additional General Fund appropriations of $113,988 in FY 2017-2018 
and $117,620 in FY 2018-2019 would be required to cover the full cost of the 
position. 
 
SENATOR GOICOECHEA: 
When did we hear the Controller's Office budget? 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
It was on February 27, 2017. 
 
 SENATOR KIECKHEFER MOVED TO ELIMINATE THE ASSISTANT 
 CONTROLLER'S POSITION FROM THE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE BUDGET 
 AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GOVERNOR. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS HAS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

MR. FERGUSON: 
There are three other closing items described on page 16 of Exhibit D. Fiscal 
staff recommends approval of other closing items 1 and 3 as recommended by 
the Governor, excluding closing item 2. Closing item 2 will be determined later. 
Item 2 is the salary adjustment for Information Technology (IT) positions and 
will be considered by the money committees when all other Statewide decision 
units are discussed. Fiscal staff also requests authority to make technical 
adjustments to this budget as necessary. 
 
Closing item 1, decision unit E-125, eliminates the university intern position 
from the Controller's Office budget, resulting in reductions to General Fund 
appropriations of $12,924 in each year of the 2017-2019 biennium. 
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E-125 Sustainable and Growing Economy — Budget Page ELECTED-261 
 
Closing item 3, decision unit E-710, requests General Fund appropriations of 
$148,837 in FY 2017-2018 and $188,839 in FY 2018-2019 for replacement 
computer hardware, including additional backup support and storage capacity, 
15 desktop personal computers, 2 laptop personal computers, 3 printers, 
3 micro printers, 2 servers, 2 switches, 2 hard drive storage racks, 1 rack 
server and various pieces of miscellaneous small IT items. 
 
E-710 Equipment Replacement — Budget Page ELECTED-263 
 
 SENATOR GOICOECHEA MOVED TO APPROVE CLOSING ITEMS 1 AND 
 3 IN B/A 101-1130 AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GOVERNOR WITH 
 AUTHORITY FOR FISCAL STAFF TO MAKE TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENTS 
 AS NEEDED. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS HAS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 

THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
BUDGET CLOSED. 
 

***** 
 

CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will move on to the Governor's Finance Office, Debt Recovery Account 
B/A 101-1140. 
 
MR. FERGUSON: 
The GFO, Debt Recovery Account, B/A 101-1140, begins on page 17 of 
Exhibit D. The major issue in this budget is the transfer of the Debt Collection 
Unit from the Controller's Office to the GFO, which we discussed in the 
previous budget. The Committee's closing action for this budget account should 
be consistent with the Committee's decision in closing of the Controller's Office 
budget. 
 
If the Committee approved the recommendation to transfer the Debt Collection 
Unit from the Controller's Office budget to the Debt Recovery Account budget, 
decision unit E-900. Fiscal staff recommends the Committee approve this 
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companion recommendation to complete the transfer. The Governor 
recommends moving the revenues and expenditures associated with debt 
collection from the Controller's office budget to the Debt Recovery Account 
budget, which is currently housed within the Controller's Office. The 
Executive Budget recommends moving the Debt Recovery Account budget from 
the Controller's Office to the GFO. Fiscal staff also requests to make technical 
adjustments to this budget as necessary and to reflect the Committee's closing 
decisions. 
 
 SENATOR KIECKHEFER MOVED TO TRANSFER THE DEBT COLLECTION 
 UNIT FROM THE CONTROLLER'S OFFICE BUDGET TO THE GOVERNOR'S 
 FINANCE OFFICE BUDGET WITH AUTHORITY FOR FISCAL STAFF TO 
 MAKE TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENTS AS NEEDED. 
 
 SENATOR DENIS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
 

MR. FERGUSON:  
There is one other closing item, decision unit E-500, which realigns the 
non-General Fund portion of the revenue transferred from the Controller's Office 
budget in decision unit E-900 so it will be funded with debt collection funds 
directly from the Debt Recovery Account. This recommendation appears 
reasonable; however, it should only be approved by the Committee if the 
recommendation to transfer the Debt Collection Unit from the Controller's Office 
to the Debt Recovery Account budget is approved. Fiscal staff also requests 
authority to make technical adjustments to this budget. 
 
E-500 Adjustment to Transfers — Budget Page ELECTED-63 
 
 SENATOR PARKS MOVED TO APPROVE THE NON-GENERAL FUND 
 PORTION OF THE REVENUE TRANSFERRED DIRECTLY FROM THE 
 CONTROLLER'S OFFICE BUDGET IN DECISION UNIT E-900 SO IT WILL 
 BE FUNDED WITH DEBT COLLECTION FUNDS DIRECTLY FROM THE 
 DEBT RECOVERY ACCOUNT WITH THE AUTHORITY OF FISCAL STAFF 
 TO MAKE TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENTS. 
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SENATOR KIECKHEFER SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
BUDGET CLOSED. 
 

***** 
 

CHAIR WOODHOUSE: 
We will move on to the Governor's Finance Office, Budget Division, 
B/A 101-1340, beginning on page 3 of Exhibit D. 
 
JON STIEBER (Program Analyst): 
This account has one major closing issue. It is the fiscal training course, 
decision unit E-228. The Governor recommends General Fund appropriations of 
$56,686 over the 2017-2019 biennium to fund startup costs for a fiscal 
training course that would be offered by WNC. The Agency indicates the WNC 
class would consolidate and enhance the fiscal training currently provided by 
the Department of Administration, Controller's Office, the GFO and other 
entities and provide an employment credential for persons that complete the 
course. 
 
According to the GFO, the program is recommended in order to prepare for 
future retirements and financial staff turnover, and would standardize training 
across all departments. Working with WNC, the GFO would develop a nine 
credit or unit program that would include existing training materials and new 
material to be developed in collaboration between the GFO and WNC.  
 
According to the GFO, the recommended amount is based on 12 students per 
semester, and 2 semesters per year, with each student taking 9 credits with a 
per credit cost of $102.50 per credit in FY 2017-2018 and $106.60 per credit 
in FY 2018-2019. Staff has included a technical adjustment to reconcile the 
Governor recommended per credit and registration fee amount to the amount 
approved by the Board of Regents for Nevada's Community Colleges, 
$95.00 per credit in FY 2017-2018 and $98.75 for FY 2018-2019. 
 
The GFO has indicated that approximately 20 subjects would be included in the 
curriculum for the 9 credit or unit course. Course instructors would be a 
combination of State employees, subject matter experts and WNC instructors. 
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The Controller's Office currently trains State employees to use Advantage, the 
Statewide financial reporting system, and how to use other State 
accounting-related programs. The GFO indicates it has the ability to offer the 
program for credit or certification, lends creditability and structure to the 
program that cannot be replicated in-house and allows non-State employees the 
same opportunity for training as State employees. 
 
According to the GFO, should the Controller's Office training officer position be 
eliminated as recommended by the Governor, other subject matter experts 
would be able to provide technical and training information on topics previously 
covered by the training officer. The GFO has indicated that once the curriculum 
and subject matter delivery is established and refined, the training could be 
provided through a distance education option or other community college 
classes that are offered Statewide. However, the rationale with starting the 
program at WNC is that most of the subject matter experts work in Carson City, 
which allows the trainers to establish the curriculum and resolve issues before 
program roll out. 
 
The Agency indicates that employment credentials earned after course 
completion would certify that potential employees have a broad understanding 
of the State's financial system and fiscal practices, general knowledge of State 
operations, and an understanding of the State's budgeting and forecasting 
procedures. 
  
Does the Committee wish to approve General Fund appropriations of $45,378, 
as adjusted by Fiscal staff, over the 2017-2019 biennium to fund the start-up 
costs for a fiscal training course at WNC? 
 
 SENATOR KIECKHEFER MOVED TO APPROVE GENERAL FUND 
 APPROPRIATIONS OF $45,378 AS ADJUSTED BY FISCAL STAFF TO 
 FUND THE START-UP COSTS FOR A FISCAL TRAINING COURSE AT 
 WNC. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 

***** 
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MR. STIEBER: 
This budget account has two other closing items, page 5 of Exhibit D, which 
appear reasonable. Item 1 is for equipment replacement, decision unit E-710. 
Item 2 is the position transfer of an administrative position and associated costs 
from the Internal Audit Division to the Budget Division, decision unit E-900. 
 
E-710 Equipment Replacement — Budget Page ELECTED-55 
 
E-900 Transfer from B/A 101-1342 to B/A 101-1340 – Budget Page 

ELECTED-55 
 
Governor's Finance Office - Div of Internal Audits — Budget Page ELECTED-57 

(Volume I) 
Budget Account 101-1342 
 
E-900 Transfer from B/A 101-1342 to B/A 101-1340 — Budget Page 

ELECTED-60 
 
Does the Committee wish to approve other closing items as recommended by 
the Governor and provide Fiscal staff with authority to make technical 
adjustments as necessary? 
 
 SENATOR GOICOECHEA MOVED TO APPROVE OTHER CLOSING ITEMS 
 1 AND 2 AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GOVERNOR WITH THE 
 AUTHORITY FOR FISCAL STAFF TO MAKE TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENTS 
 AS NEEDED. 
 
 SENATOR DENIS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 BUDGET CLOSED. 

***** 
 

MR. STIEBER: 
The Division of Internal Audits, B/A 101-1342, page 7 of Exhibit D, has no 
major closing issues. Three other closing items are described on pages 7 and 8.  
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Closing item 1, decision unit E-805, pertains to position reclassifications. The 
decisions pertaining to unclassified salaries and reclassifications to the 
unclassified service will be determined by the money committees when the 
Pay Bill is considered. Fiscal staff requests authority to make any adjustments 
subsequently required. 
 
E-805 Classified Position Changes — Budget Page ELECTED-59 
Other closing item 2, decision unit E-710, replaces three desktop personal 
computers, six monitors, three laptop personal computers, three laptop-docking 
stations and related software per the Enterprise Information Technology 
Services replacement schedule with General Fund appropriations of $12,897 
over the 2017-2019 biennium as recommended by the Governor. 
 
E-710 Equipment Replacement — Budget Page ELECTED-59 
 
Other closing item 3, decision unit E-900, transfers an administrative assistant 
position and associated costs from the Internal Audit Division to the 
Budget Division, which reduces General Fund appropriations by $138,783 over 
the 2017-2019 biennium as recommended by the Governor. 
 
Does the Committee wish to approve other closing items 2 and 3 as 
recommended by the Governor, excluding other closing item 1, which will be 
determined at a later date, and provide Fiscal staff with authority to make 
technical adjustments as necessary? 
 
 SENATOR GOICOECHEA MOVED TO APPROVE OTHER CLOSING ITEMS 
 2 AND 3 AS RECOMMENDED BY THE GOVERNOR WITH THE 
 AUTHORITY OF FISCAL STAFF TO MAKE TECHNICAL ADJUSTMENTS. 
 
 SENATOR PARKS SECONDED THE MOTION. 
 
 THE MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY. 
 
 BUDGET CLOSED. 
 

***** 
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CHAIR WOODHOUSE:  
We have completed all agenda items. Is there any public comment? Seeing no 
one, the meeting is adjourned at 9:21 a.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

RESPECTFULLY SUBMITTED: 
 
 
 

  
Mary Sullivan, 
Committee Secretary 

 
APPROVED BY: 
 
 
 
  
Senator Joyce Woodhouse, Chair 
 
DATE:   
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